
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bloomfield Township Public Library 
Board of Trustees 

 
Library Board Meeting 
December 18, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 
John Rumsey Board Room 

 
Trustees: 

libraryboard@btpl.org 
 

Judy Lindstrom, President 
Grant Gerhart, Vice President 
Sandra Edwards, Secretary 

Tom Deska 
Eli Greenbaum 

Joan Luksik 
 
 
 

Director: 
muellerc@btpl.org 

Carol Mueller 
 

All meetings are open to the public.   
We invite you to attend a meeting or watch it online at www.btpl.org 

 

 

 
1099 Lone Pine Road, Bloomfield Township, MI 48302  248.642.5800 

mailto:libraryboard@btpl.org
mailto:muellerc@btpl.org
http://www.btpl.org/


    BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEE MEETING 

 
LIBRARY BOARD INFORMATION PACKETS 

 
List of Contents 

 
Items included in pre-board delivery for the REGULAR BOARD MEETING SCHEDULED  

For Tuesday, December 18, 2018    
 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
 

# NUMBERED ITEMS        DATE DELIVERED 
 

1 Agenda          12/14/2018 
2a Request to remove items from the Consent Agenda for Discussion   12/14/2018 
2b Motion to approve the order of items for the regular and consent agendas  12/14/2018 
5 Motion to approve remaining Consent Agenda items 6-8d    12/14/2018 
6 Regular Board Meeting Minutes of 11/20/2018     12/14/2018 
7a Cash Disbursements         12/14/2018 
7b Revenues/Expenditures Budget Report      12/14/2018 
7c Energy Report          12/14/2018 
8a President’s Report– no report           
8b Director’s Report         12/14/2018 
8c Art Committee –no report           
8c Bloomfield Township Liaison – no report  
8c Building, Grounds, Landscaping, Interiors Committee –no report               
8c Cranbrook –no report   
8c Development Committee –no report        
8c Finance Committee – 12/11/2018       12/14/2018 
8c Friends of the Library Liaison – no report 
8c Jeanette P. Myers Scholarship Committee – no report      
8c Investment Committee – no report        
8c Personnel Committee – 12/6/2018       12/14/2018  
8c Policy Committee –no report   
11a PA 202          12/14/2018     
11b PA 152          12/14/2018     
11c Director Evaluation         12/14/2018     
13 Motion to approve any items removed from the Consent Agenda   12/14/2018 
 
 
 
 UNNUMBERED ITEMS       DATE DELIVERED 

Strategic Plan Update         12/14/2018 
Space Needs and Wayfinding Update      12/14/2018 
Calendar          12/14/2018 

 
   



   AGENDA 
BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Tuesday, December 18, 2018 

Regular Board Meeting 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 

 
 

1. Call to order of regular meeting 
2a. Request to remove items from the Consent Agenda for Discussion 
2b. MOTION to approve the order of items for the Regular and Consent Agendas 
3. President’s Verbal Report 
4. Director’s Verbal Report 
5. MOTION to approve the remaining Consent Agenda items 6-8d 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.    Call to the public, communications 
10.  Unfinished Business 
11.  New Business 
 a. PA 202 

b. PA 152 
c. Director Evaluation 

12.  Discussion of items removed from the Consent Agenda  
13.  MOTION to approve any items removed from the Consent Agenda 
14.  Other 
15.  Next scheduled meeting:  Tuesday, January 15, 2019 
16.  Adjournment 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS #1-5  

 

 

6.  Regular Board meeting minutes of November 20, 2018 
        
7.  Budget 
 a. Cash Disbursements 
 b. Monthly Revenues & Expenditures 
 c. Energy Report 
 
8.  Written Reports: 

a. President:    *Judy Lindstrom 
b. Director:    *Carol Mueller 
c. Committee:     *Art Committee Ad Hoc 

     *Bloomfield Township Liaison 
     *Building, Grounds, Landscaping, Interiors 
     * Cranbrook 
     * Development 
     * Finance 
     * Friends of the Library Liaison 
     * Investment 
     * Jeanette P. Myers Scholarship Selection 
     * Personnel 
     * Policy    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS #6-8d 
Items removed will be discussed under Item #12 

 
 

 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

#9-17 



                                                                     
                     

2a 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

REQUEST TO REMOVE ITEMS FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA  
FOR DISCUSSION 

 
 
 
 

I REQUEST THAT ITEM (S): 
 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 

 
BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA FOR DISCUSSION 
DURING REGULAR AGENDA ITEM 12. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If amended, CONSENT AGENDA items will be moved to REGULAR AGENDABITEM #12 

for discussion and REGULAR AGENDABITEM #13 for approval. 

 
 
 



                                                                     

                    2b 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE ORDER OF ITEMS FOR THE REGULAR 
AND CONSENT AGENDAS 

 
 
 
 

OPTION - NO AMENDMENT NEEDED: 
I move to approve the order of items as listed on the REGULAR and CONSENT 
AGENDAS as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
OPTION - AMENDMENT TO AGENDA: 

I move to approve the order of items as listed on the AGENDAS, with the following 
items to be moved from  

 
 the REGULAR AGENDA as follows: 

 
 
 
 

 the CONSENT AGENDA as follows:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
If amended, CONSENT AGENDA items will be moved to REGULAR AGENDA ITEM #12 
for discussion and REGULAR AGENDA ITEM #13 for approval. 
 
 
 

 
 



 

5 
 
 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS MOTION 
 
 

I move to approve the remaining items on the consent agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 



         MINUTES OF THE BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Bloomfield Township Public Library 
 Oakland County, Michigan 

 Tuesday, November 20, 2018 
 

At 7:00 p.m. the Regular Meeting of the Bloomfield Township Public Library Board of Trustees 
was called to order by President Eli Greenbaum.  
  

Present:          Trustees: Sandra Edwards, Eli Greenbaum, Judy Lindstrom, and Joan 
Luksik. 

 

Administration: Director Carol Mueller, Assistant Director Tera Moon, and Administrative 
Assistant Linden Godlove 

 

Guests:  Anna Pelepchuk, Circulation Department Head and Staff Organization 

Committee Representative (SOC); Adult Services Department Head Laura 
Kraly; student Christina Yu and her mother 

 

 

 

Upon discussion, a motion was made by Judy Lindstrom, seconded by Sandy Edwards TO 

APPROVE THE ORDER OF ITEMS FOR THE REGULAR AND CONSENT AGENDAS. 

 
A vote was taken for approval of the motion. 
Ayes: Edwards, Greenbaum, Lindstrom, and Luksik  
Nays: None 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

President’s Verbal Report:  
President Greenbaum will share his report at the end of the meeting. 
 

Director’s Verbal Report: 
    Director Carol Mueller introduced the new Adult Services Department Head, Laura Kraly. The 
Library is very pleased to have her here. Laura Kraly originally comes from Davisberg and recently 
left the Laudit Library in Grand Haven. There she served as the Adult Services Department Head, 
and was also in charge of Local History and Genealogy, and Public Computing 
    Congratulations to Sandy Edwards on her election to the Library Board of Trustees. Tonight, 
other trustees are also being celebrated. This is the five year anniversary of Eli Greenbaum 
serving on the Board of Trustees and ten year anniversaries of Judy Lindstrom and Joan Luksik 
serving on the Board of Trustees. Director Mueller expressed congratulations to all and thanked 
the Trustees for being on the Library Board and for all that they do.  
   An update on the renovations: the bathrooms are once again open and the meeting rooms have 
been completed. The Library has received many wonderful compliments on the improvements. 
There are some details to take care of, but generally everything is done and the Director is 
pleased. 
   Just a month ago, there was a Michigan Library Association conference in Novi. Quinn Evans 
staff Jim Mumby and Geraldine Drake, as well as Tera Moon and Carol Mueller, spoke about 

6 



space planning and change management. Youth Services Librarian Jen Taggart was a speaker 
on special needs. Board Members Grant Gerhart and Sandy Edwards attended for one day.  
   Carol Mueller showed the board sets of alphabet blocks in different languages which are a 
lovely new gift funded by the Friends of the Library for Youth Services. These can be found in the 
Youth Services room. The Friends recently had a record second Saturday sale raising $4,700. 
 

REGULAR AGENDA: 
Call to the Public: Student Christina Yu was attending for her government project. Anna 
Pelepchuk, representing the SOC, said there was nothing to report. Enthusiasm was expressed 
for the upcoming Library Holiday party. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
No unfinished business. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

11a. Election of Officers 
The Trustees elected the following Officers to serve the 2018-19 term: Judy Lindstrom, President; 
Grant Gerhart, Vice President; Sandy Edwards, Secretary. 

 
A committee has been formed to elect the best candidate for each Library Board office. Joan 
Luksik, chair of the nominations committee, reported that the committee met and has chosen their 
slate of officers after speaking with various members of the Board. Judy Lindstrom is nominated 
as is the new president of the Board. The Board appreciates Judy taking on a great task in office 
once again. Grant Gerhart is nominated as the new vice president. The secretary nominated is the 
newly elected Sandy Edwards. Two of these officers are new and it is anticipated that they will 
provide a fresh view and different ideas. 
 
A vote was taken for approval of the motion. 
Ayes: Deska, Edwards, Gerhart, Greenbaum, Lindstrom, and Luksik 
Nays: None 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

New officers for the Library Board of Trustees: Judy Lindstrom as President of the Library 

Board of Trustees, Grant Gerhart as Vice President of the Library Board of Trustees, and 

Sandy Edwards as Secretary of the Library Board of Trustees. 
 

11b. Board of Trustees Standing Committees 
Judy Lindstrom announced that there will be an appointment of committees, which will be delayed 
until January. Each board member should review the committees that they are on and decide if 
they wish to remain on these committees, or join a different committee. 

 

11c. Strategic Plan Review 
Director Carol Mueller extended her thanks to Assistant Director Tera Moon for all of her hard 
work on the Strategic Plan. 
 
Assistant Director Tera Moon repeated her thanks to the Library Board for all their efforts in 



serving the Library and the community.  The Strategic Plan has received great support from 
Director Mueller. Tera Moon reviewed that the plan is about 2.5 years old. She reviewed the 
plan and the accomplishments achieved towards it. Tera Moon reviewed what was worked on 
and reviewed the questions that were in the board packet. The marketing plan was formed, 
the newsletter was redesigned, a video tour of the library was created and now in-person tours 
are provided. Communication between departments was improved with weekly staff huddles, 
Senior meetings, and a weekly email update, and all of these have improved communication, 
working between departments, and consistent service and enforcement of rules. 
Interdepartmental collaboration was increased, and the “One World Many Stories” program 
was a great example of that. The space needs assessment project was the biggest piece of 
the strategic plan. This came out of the goals to revise the Library to meet changing needs of 
community. Technology and community needs have shifted since the Library was last 
renovated ten years ago. Space will be provided for a more flexible area for the community to 
interact, meet, create projects, and other needs. There had been feedback from the 
community on the space needs project and it is a great process that continues to move the 
Library ahead in many ways.  
 
The Board discussed the strategic plan and considered ideas for the future. 

 

OTHER:  
Sandy Edwards reported that the Friends of the Library met on November 14. They had a 
presentation by Kim Hoke, who will meet with local PTAs and reach out to them regarding the 
book sales. There is a discussion of special benefits for teachers. The treasurer is going to go to a 
quarterly report, rather than a monthly. The Vice President is going to start a committee to review 
positions on the Friends Board, and a new position needs to be created for Eve Parsons, who 
manages the Facebook promotion. 
 
Carol Mueller updated the Board about PA202. The next Library Board meeting in December will 
bring forward several important trust documents to ensure funding is secured for the future for 
other post-employment benefits (OPEB). 
 
Next Library Board Meeting will be Tuesday, December 18 at 7 p.m.  
 
President Eli Greenbam gave his verbal report. He thanked everyone on the board, the staff, and 
the public. He has felt privileged to serve as president and is very proud of this library.  
 
At 7:57 p.m. President Eli Greenbaum adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
                                                                                     Submitted by: 

                                                                                      
         Tom Deska, Secretary 
 
 



 

 

7a 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

Cash Disbursements Comments 
  

December 2018 
 

 
New Vendors:  
 
Amy Emberling is a new vendor for a library program. 
 
Collection HQ is a new vendor for library software. 
 
Frank Carollo is a new vendor for a library program. 
 
Jan Bills is a new vendor for a library program. 
 
Eddy Katkowsky is a new vendor for a library program. 
 
KTD is a new vendor for library printing. 
 
Landscape Construction, LLC is a new vendor for brick paver repairs. 
 
Melissa Baril is a new vendor for a library program. 
 
TMP is a new vendor for lobby flooring assistance. 
 
 
General Fund Advance 
 

 Check #19167 payable to 3Form in the amount of $3,416.80 is final payment for 
the Library’s welcome panels. 
 

 Check #19170 payable to Vigilante Security in the amount of $1,616.50 is partial 
payment for a lower level water detection system. 

 

 Check #19171 payable to the Bloomfield Township in the amount of $3,565.88 is 
payment for the water and sewer bill for 9/18 – 10/18. 
 

 Check #19192 payable to Quinn Evans Architects in the amount of $5,500.00 is 
payment for a deposit to start our roof project. 

 
 
 

 



 

 

General Fund 
 

 Check #19205 payable to Bloomfield Township in the amount of $401,375.71 is 
payment for three payrolls, including FICA, HRA contributions, pension, etc. as 
usual. 
 

 Check #19208 payable to the Cengage Learning/Gale in the amount of 
$13,934.46 is payment for several databases. 
 

 Check #19210 payable to the Charter Township of Bloomfield in the amount of 
$20.00 is payment for a library program DVDs. 
 

 Check #19213 payable to Du All Cleaning in the amount of $10,862.52 is 
payment for cleaning services and carpet cleaning in November, 2018. 
 

 Check #19221 payable to Innovative Choices, LTD, Inc. in the amount of 
$63,157.34 is payment for our integrated library system annual renewal. 
 

  Check #19226 payable to Midwest Collaborative for Library Services in the 
amount of $5,423.17 is payment for a workshop and one database. 
 

 Check #19227 payable to Metronet Library Consortium in the amount of 
$15,399.81is payment for ebooks and several databases. 
 

 Check #19239 payable to Proquest- CSA LLC. in the amount of $10,781.50 is 
payment for an annual subscription to the New York  Times online. 
 

 Check #19243 payable to Secant in the amount of $5,493.75 is payment for 
telephone consulting work and systems assistance. 
 

 Check #19247 payable to The Library Network (TLN) in the amount of $4,000.00 
is payment for Symantec security software. 
 

 

 
Gift Fund 
 

 Check #5002 payable to Charter Township of Bloomfield in the amount of 
$50.00 is payment for DVDs of a library program. 
 

 Check #5008 payable to The Library Network (TLN) in the amount of 
$1,879.38 is payment for a library computer. 

 
 



Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount

ADVANCE CHECKS:

19167 11/13/18 3FORM 106.01 3,416.80

19168 11/13/18 XFINITY 106.01 85.56

19169 11/13/18 PITNEY BOWES RESERVE ACCOUNT 106.01 1,500.00

19170 11/13/18 VIGILANTE SECURITY 106.01 1,616.50

19171 11/15/18 BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP 106.01 3,565.88

19172 11/15/18 FLAGSTAR BANK 106.01 3,116.58

19173 11/15/18 Nicole Gillies 106.01 93.54

19174 11/15/18 VERIZON WIRELESS 106.01 202.68

19175 11/15/18 VIGILANTE SECURITY 106.01 1,950.00

19176 11/20/18 APPLIED IMAGING 106.01 84.32

19177 11/20/18 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. 106.01 97.66

19178 11/20/18 DTE ENERGY 106.01 16,157.32

19179 11/20/18 APPLIED IMAGING 106.01 608.60

19180 11/28/18 AMAZON.COM 106.01 3,799.54

19181 11/28/18 LAURIE BLUME 106.01 1,100.00

19182 11/28/18 PETTY CASH - BTPL 106.01 117.48

19183 11/28/18 XFINITY 106.01 80.95

19184 11/28/18 PRINCIPAL LIFE INS CO-SBD GRANDE ISLAND 106.01 760.24

19185 12/4/18 AT&T 106.01 473.87

19186 12/4/18 CAR TRUCKING, INC. 106.01 199.50

19187 12/4/18 Elizabeth Clauder 106.01 102.71

19188 12/4/18 CONSUMERS ENERGY 106.01 4,449.79

19189 12/4/18 Andrea Lebeck 106.01 34.05

19190 12/4/18 Martha McGee 106.01 35.51

19191 12/4/18 Edward Niemchak 106.01 31.87

19192 12/4/18 QUINN EVANS ARCHITECTS 106.01 5,500.00

19193 12/4/18 T MOBILE 106.01 29.40

Total 44,207.99

REGULAR CHECKS:

19194 12/7/18 ABDO-SPOTLIGHT-MAGIC WAGON 106.01 2,203.40

19195 12/7/18 ACE LAWN CARE & SNOW REMOVAL 106.01 3,446.25

19196 12/7/18 AERO FILTER, INC 106.01 200.88

19197 12/7/18 ALL-CITY REFRIGERATION 106.01 379.00

19198 12/7/18 APPLE BOOKS 106.01 19.99

19199 12/7/18 ARBOR OAKLAND GROUP 106.01 4,113.00

19200 12/7/18 ASSA ABLOY ENTRANCE SOLUTIONS 106.01 61.15

19201 12/7/18 BAKER & TAYLOR, INC. 106.01 15,095.89

19202 12/7/18 MELISSA BARIL 106.01 175.00

19203 12/7/18 BELIGHTFUL YOGA, LLC 106.01 640.00

19204 12/7/18 BLACKSTONE AUDIO, INC. 106.01 472.47

19205 12/7/18 BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP 106.01 401,375.71

19206 12/7/18 BOOKS GALORE INC. 106.01 3,852.91

19207 12/7/18 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. 106.01 303.00

19208 12/7/18 CENGAGE LEARNING/GALE 106.01 13,934.46

19209 12/7/18 CENTRAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC. 106.01 462.45

19210 12/7/18 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF BLOOMFIELD 106.01 20.00

19211 12/7/18 BRIDGEALL LIBRARIES LIMITED 106.01 11,250.00

19212 12/7/18 DEMCO, INC. 106.01 317.59

19213 12/7/18 DU ALL CLEANING, INC 106.01 10,862.52

19214 12/7/18 ELM USA, Inc. 106.01 620.00

19215 12/7/18 FINANCIAL INFORMATION, INC. 106.01 3,850.00

19216 12/7/18 GOLDNER WALSH NURSERY, INC. 106.01 3,685.35

19217 12/7/18 GRAINGER, INC 106.01 1,086.09

19218 12/7/18 GREY HOUSE PUBLISHING 106.01 265.50

19219 12/7/18 VOID 106.01

19220 12/7/18 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES 106.01 1,067.01

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY

CHECK REGISTERS

FOR THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2018

General Fund

1



Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY

CHECK REGISTERS

FOR THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2018

19221 12/7/18 INNOVATIVE CHOICES LTD., INC. 106.01 63,157.34

19222 12/7/18 J W PEPPER & SON, INC 106.01 127.95

19223 12/7/18 LJ ROLLS REFRIGERATION CO., INC 106.01 2,988.33

19224 12/7/18 LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS 106.01 30.98

19225 12/7/18 LANDSCAPE CONSTRUCTION L.L.C. 106.01 963.79

19226 12/7/18 MIDWEST COLLABORATIVE for LIB. SVCS 106.01 5,423.17

19227 12/7/18 METRONET LIB. CONSORT. 106.01 15,399.81

19228 12/7/18 MICROMARKETING LLC 106.01 760.97

19229 12/7/18 MIDWEST TAPE 106.01 3,590.37

19230 12/7/18 MIKERO MOH 106.01 500.00

19231 12/7/18 MULTICULTURAL BOOKS & VIDEOS 106.01 1,000.00

19232 12/7/18 NICHOLS/NETWORK SERVICES CO 106.01 943.96

19233 12/7/18 OMNIGRAPHICS 106.01 144.60

19234 12/7/18 OVERDRIVE 106.01 7,842.71

19235 12/7/18 OXFORD UNIVERSITY PRESS USA 106.01 1,420.00

19236 12/7/18 PENGUIN RANDOM HOUSE LLC 106.01 603.12

19237 12/7/18 PLUNKETT RESEARCH, LTD. 106.01 379.99

19238 12/7/18 POSEIDON LAWN SPRINKLERS 106.01 220.00

19239 12/7/18 PROQUEST-CSA LLC 106.01 10,781.50

19240 12/7/18 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 106.01 208.55

19241 12/7/18 ROSEN PUBLISHING 106.01 106.20

19242 12/7/18 THE ROWMAN & LITTLEFIELD PUBLISHING GRP 106.01 508.54

19243 12/7/18 SECANT 106.01 5,493.75

19244 12/7/18 SQBOX SOLUTIONS LTD. 106.01 3,090.00

19245 12/7/18 SUMMIT ELECTRIC, INC. 106.01 225.00

19246 12/7/18 TEL SYSTEMS 106.01 1,645.00

19247 12/7/18 THE LIBRARY NETWORK 106.01 4,000.00

19248 12/7/18 THOMSON REUTERS 106.01 91.00

19249 12/7/18 THOMSON REUTERS 106.01 129.21

19250 12/7/18 TMP ARCHITECTURE 106.01 2,225.00

19251 12/7/18 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. 106.01 161.10

19252 12/7/18 US GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE 106.01 58.00

19253 12/7/18 WALLACEBURG BOOKBINDING & MFG 106.01 229.00

19254 12/7/18 WEISS RATINGS INC 106.01 478.05

19255 12/7/18 WESCO DISTRIBUTION 106.01 2,748.00

19256 12/7/18 WOLTERS KLUWER 106.01 135.23

19257 12/7/18 WT COX INFORMATION SERVICES 106.01 23.75

19258 12/7/18 HEALEY FIRE PROTECTION, INC 106.01 790.00

Total 618,383.59

ADVANCE CHECKS:

4997 11/15/18 FLAGSTAR BANK 102.03 90.49

4998 11/28/18 AMAZON.COM 102.03 685.12

Total 775.61

REGULAR CHECKS:

4999 12/7/18 ACCUCUT 102.03 687.50

5000 12/7/18 JAN BILLS 102.03 300.00

5001 12/7/18 FRANK CAROLLO 102.03 375.00

5002 12/7/18 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF BLOOMFIELD 102.03 50.00

5003 12/7/18 AMY EMBERLING 102.03 375.00

5004 12/7/18 GOLDNER WALSH NURSERY, INC. 102.03 3,725.00

5005 12/7/18 EDDY KATKOWSKY 102.03 600.00

5006 12/7/18 LANDSCAPE CONSTRUCTION L.L.C. 102.03 3,036.21

5007 12/7/18 SCHOLASTIC INC 102.03 139.10

5008 12/7/18 THE LIBRARY NETWORK 102.03 1,879.38

Total 11,167.19

Gift Fund

2



Bloomfield Township Public Library

 2018-2019 General Fund Budget   7b 

2018-2019 2018-2019 Eight Months 67%

ADOPTED BUDGET AMENDED BUDGET REVENUE/EXPENSE REVENUE/ % OF

ACCOUNT ACCOUNT AS OF AS OF CURRENT EXPENSE BUDGET

NUMBER NAME MARCH 20, 2018 MARCH 20, 2018 MONTH YTD YTD VARIANCE

Revenues

410.01 Taxes $7,095,067 $7,095,067 $0 ($3,267) -0.05% ($7,098,334)

420.01 Penal Fines $85,021 $85,021 $0 $85,883 101.01% $862

422.01 State Aid $26,860 $26,860 $0 $30,118 112.13% $3,258

430.01 Circulation Fines & Fees $100,000 $100,000 $5,927 $56,267 56.27% ($43,733)

Charges for Services $13,800 $13,800 $906 $10,123 73.35% ($3,677)

Investment earnings $79,000 $79,000 $42,791 $124,439 157.52% $45,439

Miscellaneous $13,497 $13,497 $3,445 $16,044 118.87% $2,547

Total Revenues $7,413,245 $7,413,245 $53,070 $319,606 4.31% ($7,093,639)

Expenditures

Personnel $4,119,114 $4,119,114 $401,103 $2,650,775 64.35% ($1,468,339)

Library Services $875,133 $875,133 $107,519 $553,341 63.23% ($321,792)

Facilities & Equipment $1,109,615 $1,109,615 $129,647 $691,017 62.28% ($418,598)

Other Operating Expenditures $3,022,865 $3,022,865 $29,427 $373,464 12.35% ($2,649,401)

Total Expenditures $9,126,727 $9,126,727 $667,696 $4,268,597 46.77% ($4,858,130)

Fund Balance - Beginning $12,889,674 $12,889,674 $12,889,674

Net revenue (expenditure) ($1,713,482) ($1,713,482) ($3,948,991)

Fund Balance - Ending $11,176,192 $11,176,192 $8,940,683

Amendments to the budget:

None

Changes made to the line items:

None

Fund Balance Designations

Nonspendable-Prepaid Expense $32,613 $32,613

$4,230,951 $4,230,951

$6,812,628 $6,812,628

$100,000 $100,000

PRESENTED: DECEMBER 18, 2018        FOR THE MONTH OF: NOVEMBER, 2018

Committed Fund Balance (is 8-months of operational 

expenditures amount)

Assigned Fund Balance (is $453,182 the 3/31/18 

compensated absences accrual, plus $6,328,395 the 3/31/18 

OPEB obligation plus $31,051 for capital improvements)

Unassigned Fund Balance (is the unplanned 

emergency amount)



Bloomfield Township Public Library

 2018-2019 Gift Fund Budget

2018-2019 2018-2019

ADOPTED AMENDED REVENUE/

BUDGET BUDGET EXPENSE REVENUE/ % OF

ACCOUNT ACCOUNT AS OF AS OF CURRENT EXPENSE BUDGET

NUMBER NAME MAR 20, 2018 DEC 18, 2018 MONTH YTD YTD VARIANCE

Revenues

Gift Income $500 $53,771 $450 $53,771 100.00% $0

454.03 Investment Earnings $200 $200 $12 $116 57.90% ($84)

460.03 Miscellaneous Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00% $0

Total Revenues $700 $53,971 $462 $53,887 99.84% ($84)

Expenditures

Library Services $56,425 $75,622 $2,739 $39,120 51.73% ($36,502)

Facilities & Equipment $30,202 $46,017 $8,641 $27,168 59.04% ($18,850)

Other Operating Expenditures $98,891 $117,150 $564 $21,823 18.63% ($95,327)

Total Expenditures $185,518 $238,789 $11,943 $88,111 36.90% ($150,678)

Fund Balance - Beginning $90,305 $90,305 $90,305

Reserved Fund Bal. $94,713 $94,713 $94,713

Net revenue (expenditures) ($184,818) ($184,818) ($34,224)

Fund Balance - Ending $200 $200 $150,794

PRESENTED: DECEMBER 18, 2018       FOR THE MONTH OF: NOVEMBER, 2018

Eight Months 67%



7b

Annual

Fund Type Yield Date Amount on Hand

General Fund

5th 3rd Checking (Ecommerce) 0.00% 11/30/2018 $61,583.96

Flagstar Public Funds Savings 1.40% 11/30/2018 $190,887.66

Flagstar Premier Public Entities Checking 0.70% 11/30/2018 $21,724.48

RBC Capital Cash/Money Market 0.11% 11/30/2018 $34.44

RBC Capital - Investments 2.72% 11/30/2018 $9,291,692.86

Total General Fund $9,504,339.44

Please see General Fund budget for notes on how this amount is earmarked

Gift Fund Huntington Public Fund Business Interest Checking 0.15% 11/30/2018 $95,471.48

Huntington CD (Charnov gift) - matures 02/04/2019 0.45% 11/30/2018 $50,000.00

Fifth Third Bank Business Standard Checking 0.00% 11/30/2018 $8,855.22

Total Gift Fund $154,326.70

CFSEM

Updated 3/2018

Jeanette P. Myers Memorial Scholarship Fund 12/31/2017 $15,231.00

Yvonne T. Atkinson Fund 12/31/2017 $30,453.00

Lawrence Smith and Isabel Francis Smith Challenge Grant Fund 12/31/2017 $34,092.42

BTPL Endowment Fund 12/31/2017 $35,593.58

Fair Radom Garden Endowment Fund 12/31/2017 $15,511.00

BTPL Director's Legacy Fund 12/31/2017 $16,333.00

Total CFSEM holdings $147,214.00

Bloomfield Township Public Library

Asset Allocation Summary

November 2018

The following endowment funds are administerd by the Community Foundation for Southeast 

Michigan (CFSEM). CFSEM maintains unilateral variance power and legal ownership of the 

endowment funds, and therefore, principal is not available to BTPL.  Earnings are available for 

distribution to the Library for its operations at the discretion of CFSEM.



  7b

   

Month

2017/2018 

Fiscal Year

2018/2019 

Fiscal Year Difference

  

APR $9,449.79 $6,256.90 ($3,192.89)

MAY $7,559.45 $7,103.51 ($455.94)

JUN $9,866.26 $7,120.68 ($2,745.58)

JUL $7,426.47 $7,638.21 $211.74

AUG $9,421.94 $7,679.75 ($1,742.19)

SEP $7,488.29 $6,412.82 ($1,075.47)

OCT $6,607.58 $8,128.01 $1,520.43

NOV $7,444.84 $5,927.20 ($1,517.64)

DEC $7,059.80 ($7,059.80)

JAN $8,097.85 ($8,097.85)

FEB $6,896.75 ($6,896.75)

MAR $6,549.10 ($6,549.10)

YTD Difference

TOTAL $93,868.12 $56,267.08 ($37,601.04)

FINES AND FEES - TWO-YEAR COMPARISON

$0.00

$2,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

$14,000.00

$16,000.00

$18,000.00

A
P

R

M
A

Y

J
U

N

J
U

L

A
U

G

S
E

P

O
C

T

N
O

V

D
E

C

J
A

N

F
E

B

M
A

R

A
m

o
u

n
t 

Months 

Fines and Fees 
Two-Year Comparison 

2017/2018
Fiscal Year

2018/2019
Fiscal Year



 7b   

Month

2017/2018    

Revenue

2018/2019    

Revenue Difference

2017/2018 

Usage

2018/2019 

Usage Month

APR $1,345.50 $1,380.00 $34.50 33 38 APR

MAY $1,074.00 $1,530.00 $456.00 27 46 MAY

JUN $1,281.00 $1,360.00 $79.00 28 32 JUN

JUL $1,070.00 $1,100.00 $30.00 19 17 JUL

AUG $1,570.00 $640.00 ($930.00) 19 19 AUG

SEP $1,833.00 $1,700.00 ($133.00) 37 42 SEP

OCT $970.00 $1,150.00 $180.00 35 26 OCT

NOV $2,160.00 $860.00 ($1,300.00) 44 23 NOV

DEC $800.00 ($800.00) 14 DEC

JAN $800.00 ($800.00) 34 JAN

FEB $1,480.00 ($1,480.00) 18 FEB

MAR $2,110.00 ($2,110.00) 44 MAR

YTD Difference

TOTAL $16,493.50 $9,720.00 ($6,773.50) 352 243

ROOM RENTAL - TWO-YEAR COMPARISON

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

A
m

o
u

n
t 

Months 

Room Rental Revenue 

2017/2018
Revenue

2018/2019
Revenue

0

10

20

30

40

50

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

R
e

n
ta

ls
 

Months 

Room Rental Usage 

2017/2018
Usage

2018/2019
Usage



7c

Building Area = 101,023 Sq ft.

TOTAL

2017/2018 2018/2019 Difference KWH COST/KWH KWH/HR KWH/SQ FT COST/HR COST/SQ FT.

Month (24 x no.days per 

month)

101,023 (24 x no. days per 

month)

101,023

APR $16,181.75 $19,326.66 $3,144.91 227,710 $0.08 316.26 2.25 $26.84 $0.19

MAY $17,048.76 $17,765.47 $716.71 189,770 $0.09 255.07 1.88 $23.88 $0.18

JUN $18,251.58 $22,441.79 $4,190.21 256,550 $0.09 356.32 2.54 $31.17 $0.22

JUL $20,183.10 $21,003.42 $820.32 237,370 $0.09 319.05 2.35 $28.23 $0.21

AUG $18,042.04 $21,106.71 $3,064.67 251,650 $0.08 338.24 2.49 $28.37 $0.21

SEP $17,640.48 $20,598.04 $2,957.56 268,590 $0.08 373.04 2.66 $28.61 $0.20

OCT $16,784.00 $18,134.07 $1,350.07 207,060 $0.09 278.31 2.05 $24.37 $0.18

NOV $14,899.46 $16,157.32 $1,257.86 162,750 $0.10 226.04 1.61 $22.44 $0.16

DEC $14,103.39 ($14,103.39) #DIV/0! 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00

JAN $14,243.92 ($14,243.92) #DIV/0! 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00

FEB $15,178.78 ($15,178.78) #DIV/0! 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00

MAR $16,912.49 ($16,912.49) #DIV/0! 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00

YTD Difference

TOTAL $199,469.75 $156,533.48 ($42,936.27)

Bloomfield Township Public Library

Electricity Analysis

TWO YEAR COST COMPARISON CURRENT YEAR OPERATION

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

K
W

/S
q

 F
t 

Month 

Two Year Operation Comparison 

2017/2018

2018/2019

$0.00

$5,000.00

$10,000.00

$15,000.00

$20,000.00

$25,000.00

$30,000.00

$35,000.00

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

In
v
o

ic
e
 t

o
ta

l 

Month 

Two Year Cost Comparison 

2017/2018

2018/2019

12/10/2018



7c

    Building Area = 101,023

      1 Cu. Ft.  = 1000 BTU

     

2017/2018 2018/2019 Difference MCF COST/MCF HOURS MCF/HR MCF/SqFt $/HR $/SqFt

Month (24 x no.days 

per month)

APR $4,929.25 $4,735.91 ($193.34) 890.7 $5.32 720 1.24 0.009 6.58 0.046

MAY $4,411.34 $4,527.01 $115.67 849.6 $5.33 744 1.14 0.008 6.08 0.044

JUN $3,842.61 $4,270.19 $427.58 802.7 $5.32 720 1.11 0.008 5.93 0.042

JUL $4,009.40 $3,820.68 ($188.72) 721.7 $5.29 744 0.97 0.007 5.14 0.037

AUG $3,514.92 $4,002.67 $487.75 756.6 $5.29 744 1.02 0.007 5.38 0.039

SEP $4,181.90 $4,426.73 $244.83 827.2 $5.35 720 1.15 0.008 6.15 0.043

OCT $3,793.70 $3,905.80 $112.10 730.8 $5.34 744 0.98 0.007 5.25 0.038

NOV $3,552.74 $4,449.79 $897.05 817.7 $5.44 720 1.14 0.008 6.18 0.043

DEC $4,656.43 ($4,656.43) #DIV/0! 744 0.00 0.000 0.00 0.000

JAN $6,369.63 ($6,369.63) #DIV/0! 744 0.00 0.000 0.00 0.000

FEB $4,551.76 ($4,551.76) #DIV/0! 696 0.00 0.000 0.00 0.000

MAR $5,313.49 ($5,313.49) #DIV/0! 744 0.00 0.000 0.00 0.000

YTD Difference

TOTAL $53,127.17 $34,138.78 ($18,988.39)

Bloomfield Township Public Library

Natural Gas Analysis

TWO YEAR COST COMPARISON OPERATION

0

0.003

0.006

0.009

0.012

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

M
C

F
/S

q
F

t 

Month 

Two Year Operation Comparison 

2017/2018

2018/2019

$0.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$3,000.00

$4,000.00

$5,000.00

$6,000.00

$7,000.00

$8,000.00

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

In
v
o

ic
e
 t

o
ta

l 

Month 

Two Year Cost Comparison 

2017/2018

2018/2019

12/10/2018



 
7c

Month

2017/18 

Fiscal Year 

Cost

2018/19 

Fiscal Year 

Cost Difference

2017/18 

Fiscal Year 

Usage

2018/19 

Fiscal Year 

Usage Difference

  

APR $803.09 $1,070.69 $267.60 59 68 9

MAY $3,440.06 $1,159.66 ($2,280.40) 365 90 (275)

JUN $4,772.76 $4,448.57 ($324.19) 528 429 (99)

JUL $7,363.60 $5,988.08 ($1,375.52) 829 584 (245)

AUG $6,010.12 $5,110.72 ($899.40) 670 497 (173)

SEP $5,554.34 $5,347.24 ($207.10) 617 521 (96)

OCT $2,046.74 $3,565.88 $1,519.14 209 337 128

NOV $540.76 $1,491.00 $950.24 34 122 88

DEC $552.89 ($552.89) 35 (35)

JAN $1,802.28 ($1,802.28) 138 (138)

FEB $783.36 ($783.36) 54 (54)

MAR $965.31 ($965.31) 69 (69)

YTD Difference YTD Difference

TOTAL $34,635.31 $28,181.84 ($6,453.47) 3,607 2,648 (959)

Bloomfield Township Public Library

Water Analysis

$0.00

$1,500.00

$3,000.00

$4,500.00

$6,000.00

A
P

R

M
A

Y

J
U

N

J
U

L

A
U

G

S
E

P

O
C

T

N
O

V

D
E

C

J
A

N

F
E

B

M
A

R

In
v
o

ic
e

 t
o

ta
l 

Months 

Two-Year Cost Comparison 

2017/18
Fiscal Year
Cost

2018/19
Fiscal Year
Cost

0

200

400

600

800

A
P

R

M
A

Y

J
U

N

J
U

L

A
U

G

S
E

P

O
C

T

N
O

V

D
E

C

J
A

N

F
E

B

M
A

R

U
s
a

g
e

 t
o

ta
l 

in
 t

h
o
u
s
a
n
d
's

 
o
f 

g
a
llo

n
s
 

Months 

Two-Year Usage Comparison 

2017/18
Fiscal Year
Usage

2018/19
Fiscal Year
Usage



8b 
BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MONTHLY DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

December, 2018 

 

 
What fun we had at the annual Library Holiday Party on December 2!  It is 
wonderful for us all - Library Trustees, Friends Board, Library staff and 
volunteers – to come together outside of the Library and get to know each other 
a little better.  It is our only opportunity to do so.  Our sincere thanks to SOC for 
their hard work planning such a wonderful event and to our Friends for their 
generous financial support of the evening. 
 
 
As you know, the Library’s Grounds Maintenance and Snow Removal bid expires 
on March 31, 2019.  On December 5, a mandatory walk through was held for 
potential proposers.  Two company representatives attended this walk through.  
The deadline for proposals is December 21, 2018 at 3:00pm with a public bid 
opening to follow immediately thereafter. Bid awards for both grounds 
maintenance and snow removal will take place at the February 19, 2019 Library 
Board meeting.  
 
 
Just a reminder that the Library is closed on Monday, December 24 and 
Tuesday, December 25 and closes at 5:30pm on Monday, December 31 and is 
closed all day on Tuesday, January 1, 2019. 
 
 

Warm Wishes this holiday season and all year long! 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Carol Mueller 
Director 



BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY

FIVE YEAR CIRCULATION

12/10/2018

2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019

APRIL 65,851 63,783 59,090 63,413 57,829

MAY 61,347 58,740 57,125 59,745 53,493

JUNE 67,987 68,518 63,243 64,319 59,101

JULY 77,485 75,304 71,265 70,006 66,539

AUGUST 69,931 73,868 69,676 70,391 66,907

SEPTEMBER 62,536 60,292 58,100 56,939 56,817

OCTOBER 61,177 61,960 58,678 56,291 58,359

NOVEMBER 62,815 59,157 54,362 54,703 56,357

DECEMBER 61,726 59,871 58,628 52,859

JANUARY 63,404 62,491 63,455 58,510

FEBRUARY 60,140 60,612 57,856 54,554

MARCH    66,845 64,896 66,071 62,452

TOTAL 781,244 769,492 737,549 724,182 475,402

50,000

55,000

60,000

65,000

70,000

75,000

80,000

85,000

90,000

95,000

100,000

T
h

o
u

s
a

n
d

s
 i
n

 C
ir

c
u

la
ti

o
n

 

Months 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
FIVE-YEAR COMPARISON 
CIRCULATION STATISTICS  

2014/2015

2015/2016

2016/2017

2017/2018

2018/2019



NOVEMBER 2018 BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY

MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT
 12/10/2018

2017 2018
COLLECTION

Book Collection: 270,805 251,761
Media Collection: 61,023 60,683
Total e-books: 32,132 15,533
   Overdrive 9,488 11,072
   EBSCOhost 19,196 0
Total downloadable audiobooks: 5,306 5,889
Materials Total: 369,266 333,866

CIRCULATION

Circulation Total: 54,703 56,357
Bloomfield Township Circulation: 50,869 52,337
Virtual Circulation Total 7,952 11,130

Circulation of Youth materials: 19,920 19,824
Circulation of Media: 16,749 15,309
Circulation of Cranbrook passes: 161 168
Self-checkout machine use: 21,066 38.5% 20,086 35.6%
Library by Mail: 52 30 patrons 41 26 patrons

BUILDING & EQUIPMENT USAGE

Door Count: 18,425 * 16,381 *
Gate Count: 25,337 24,854
Meeting rooms by public: 44 23
Meeting rooms by staff: 82 87

VIRTUAL USE

Home page hits: 28,348 27,135
e-book access: 2,198 2,716
   Overdrive 2,182 2,713
   EBSCOhost 16 3
Audiobook access:  (Overdrive) 1,092 1,488
Freegal music download access: 1,111 869
Freegal music streaming: 1,260 2,218

Magazine download access: 677 1,769
Hoopla access: 1,614 2,070
Tutor.com sessions: 58 83

Library Computer Use

     Resident Use 1,289 1,184
     Guest Use 621 518

*Library closed at 5:30pm Thanksgiving Eve and all day Thanksgiving



NOVEMBER 2018 BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY

MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT
 12/10/2018

2017 2018
OUTREACH & PROGRAMS

New Patrons and Accounts

Township: 142 160
Cranbrook: 1 2
Total new patrons: 215 211

Adult Program Attendance

Staff-led: 16 events 187 attended 8 events 131 attended
Speaker-led: 9 events 169 attended 10 events 217 attended
Book clubs: 6 events 70 attended 7 events 52 attended
Tours/visits on-site: 0 0 1 event 8 attended
Tours/visits off-site: 0 0 5 events 82 attended
Chamber Music Concert 1 event 91 attended 1 event 93 attended

Systems Program Attendance

Staff-led: 6 events 45 attended 9 events 83 attended

Teen Program Attendance

Staff-led: 2 events 2 attended 1 event 0 attended

Youth Program Attendance

Staff-led: 28 events 498 attended 29 events 798 attended
Speaker-led: 0 0 0 0
Tours/visits on-site: 0 0 2 events 20 attended
Tours/visits off-site: 3 events 86 attended 2 events 63 attended
TOTAL: 71 events 1,148 attended 75 events 1,547 attended

Volunteers: 25 people 216.75 hours 26 people 175.50 hours

Shop: 10 105.5 Shop: 11 89.75

Court: 1 30 Court: 1 5.5

Students: 5 22.5 Students: 6 19.5

Dept. Vol: 9 58.75 Dept. Vol: 8 60.75

Patron Remarks

Patron Comments: 4 13
Ask BTPL: 2 1
Ask Us: 26 44

DISPLAYS

Lobby Items from Armenian Women's Club
Media Adult: Quilt/Crafts; Movie Night & Comedies; Remember Stan Lee

Youth: Gobble Up Good Audiobooks

Local History Electronic Databases



                          
 MINUTES OF THE BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 

FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 
The Finance Committee meeting of the Bloomfield Township Public Library Board was 
held in the Library on Tuesday, December 11, 2018 at 11:00 a.m.  
 
Trustees: Grant Gerhart, Joan Luksik 
 
Administration: Library Director, Carol Mueller; Assistant Library Director, Tera 

Moon; Finance Coordinator, Sandi Bird 
 
Old Business: 
 
PA 152 2018 
Each December the Library Board must make a decision about which of the available 
options for funding health care costs the Library will follow for the coming fiscal year. 
The Personnel Committee supports the recommendation to adopt the 80/20 option. 
After discussion, the Finance Committee also supports this recommendation for the 
2019/2020 fiscal year. This decision will be on the agenda for the regular monthly 
Library Board of Trustees meeting on December 18, 2018. 

PA 202 
Carol shared information about a new Michigan law – PA 202- which requires local units 
of governments to put 40% of funding for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) into 
a qualified trust.  Administration has been working on being compliant with this law.  The 
deadline for submission of documentation is December 26, 2018.  This information was 
presented to the Personnel Committee at their meeting on December 6, 2018 and will 
be presented to the entire Board of Trustees at the regular monthly meeting on 
December 18, 2018.   

 
 
Next meeting:  Budget Review Session TBD 



 

8c 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE  

 
The meeting of the Bloomfield Township Public Library Board of Trustees Personnel Committee was 
held in the Library on Thursday, December 6, 2018 at 11:00 a.m. 
 
Present: Trustees Sandy Edwards, Eli Greenbaum, Judy Lindstrom 
 
Administration: Library Director Carol Mueller; Assistant Director Tera Moon; Finance 

Coordinator Sandi Bird 
 
PA 152 

Each December the Library Board must make a decision about which of the available options for 
funding health care costs the Library will follow for the coming fiscal year. After discussion, the 
Personnel Committee recommends choosing the 80/20 option for the 2019/2020 fiscal year. This 
decision will be on the agenda for the regular monthly Library Board of Trustees meeting on 
December 18, 2018. 

Preliminary Personnel Budget FY 2019/2020 

Carol shared some assumptions we have made in order to draft our preliminary budget.  There is still 
some work being done on this part of the budget, including a salary survey which compares our 
salaries with libraries of similar size in our region.   

 
PA 202 

Carol shared information about a new Michigan law which requires local units of governments to put 
40% of funding for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) into a qualified trust.  Administration has 
been working on being compliant with this law.  The deadline for submission of documentation is 
December 26, 2018.  This information will be presented at the meeting of the Finance Committee and 
the entire Board of Trustees at the regular monthly meeting on December 18, 2018. 

 
Director’s Evaluation  

The committee discussed the timeline for the Director’s Evaluation.  The current committee will 
continue to oversee this process through February 19, 2019 when the performance appraisal will be 
presented to the Director and a recommendation will be made about renewing the Director’s contract. 

 
Other 
The group discussed the possibility of drafting a naming policy.   
 
 
 
No future meeting is scheduled at this time.   



























 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY          
RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS TRUST 

 
 
 
TRUST AGREEMENT made this 18th day of December, 2018 between the Bloomfield 
Township Public Library (the “Library”) and the duly serving members of the Trust Board 
of Trustees (the “Trust Trustees”). 
 
W I T N E S E T H: 
 
WHEREAS, the Library has established certain Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”), other 
than pensions, for eligible former employees of the Library; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Library wishes to establish an irrevocable trust (hereinafter the “Trust”) for the 
purpose of funding OPEB obligations as required to be reported under General Accounting 
Standards Board (“GASB”) statements in relation to OPEB; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Trust is established by the Library with the intention that it qualify as a tax-exempt 
trust performing an essential governmental function within the meaning of Section 115 of the 
Internal Revenue Service Code and Regulations issued thereunder and as a trust for OPEB under 
Michigan Compiled Laws Act Section 202 (“PA 202”). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing promises and the mutual covenants 
hereinafter set forth, Library and the Trust Trustees hereby agree as follows. 
 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

 
As used herein, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 
 
1.1. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time. 
 
1.2. “GASB 74 and 75,” shall mean Government Accounting Standards Board, Statement No. 
74 and Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions. 
 
1.3. “Other post-employment benefits” or “OPEB,” shall mean post-employment benefits 
other than pensions as that term is defined in GASB 74 and 75 (and/or including relative revisions 
or rescissions to those specific statements, and subsequently issued GASB statements applicable 
to OPEB administration, management, and reporting) including post-employment healthcare 
benefits, regardless of the type of plan that provides them, and all post-employment benefits 
provided separately from a pension plan, excluding benefits defined as termination offers and 
benefits. 



















































 
Section 115 Trust                                                                       

Attachment #5 
BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees  
 
FROM: Carol Mueller, Library Director 
 
DATE: December 18, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Mid-Year Budget Amendment to Fund 40% of the Other Post   
  Employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability 
 
Public Act 2 of 1968, better known as the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, requires an 
amendment to the adopted budget when it can be determined that the budget projections will be 
materially different than originally anticipated.  Typically, budget amendments are reviewed at 
the year-end in order to develop an amended budget resolution to more closely reflect the actual 
operational costs and the use of cash reserves.  It is my recommendation to adopt the following 
resolution to amend the FY 2018-2019 Budget in order to transfer the funds for funding 40% of the 
actuarial determined OPEB liability from the General Fund to the Section 115 OPEB Trust. 
 

Resolution 
FY 2018-2019 Mid-Year Budget Amendment 

 
WHEREAS, the Library would like to provide funding of $2,084,000 for retiree health care benefits 
and transfer the funds from the General Fund to the Section 115 OPEB Trust; 
 
WHEREAS, the funding source is the Assigned Fund Balance reserves of the General Fund; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the General Fund Retiree Health Care - OPEB 
expenditure budget line item 7230.01 be increased by $2,084,000 for the funding of the 40% 
actuarial determined OPEB liability. The Assigned Fund Balance reserves of the General Fund 
shall be decreased by $3,388,395 (from $6,328,395 to $2,940,000) based on the December, 
2018 actuarial determined OPEB liability of $4,900,000 x 60%. 
 
FY 2018-2019 Budget Amendment 1:  
Increase Retiree Health Care – OPEB expenditure budget line item by $2,084,000, authorized by 
the Trustees at the December 18, 2018 Regular Council Meeting. There is a $2,084,000 planned 
use of the Assigned Fund Balance for funding 40% of the OPEB liability. 
 
ACTION:  I move to approve the following mid-year budget amendment resolution to fund 40% 
of the actuarial determined OPEB liability.  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Board of Trustees at the December 18, 2018 meeting has approved FY 2018-2019 Budget 
Amendment 1 to fund 40% of the actuarial determined OPEB liability.  
 
__________________________   ________________________________ 
Library Board President    Library Board Secretary 



         11b 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
MEMORANDUM 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

TO:  Trustees 
 
FROM: Carol Mueller, Library Director 
 
DATE: December 13, 2018 
       
SUBJECT: PA 152 
 
Michigan Public Act 152, the Publicly Funded Health Insurance Contribution Act, 
requires public employees to contribute to their health insurance costs.  This Act gives 
public employers three options to choose for funding health care costs:  (1) the hard cap 
option, (2) the 80/20 option or (3) to be exempt. 
 

Option 1 – Hard Cap Option:   
By a majority vote of its governing body, a public employer shall pay not more for 
a medical benefits plan than a total equal to $6,685.17 for single coverage, 
$13,980.75 for employee and spouse (not available for our health care 
coverage), or $18,232.31 for family coverage for each eligible employee.  This is 
referred to as utilizing “hard cap” and would mean our eligible employees would 
pay the difference between the total annual cost of the medical benefits plan and 
the hard cap noted above. 

  
Option 2 – 80/20 Option: 
By a majority vote of its governing body, a public employer shall pay not more 
than 80% of the total annual costs of the medical benefit plans it offers. Our 
eligible employees would be required to pay 20% or more of the total annual 
costs of that plan. 

  
Option 3 – Exempt: 
By a 2/3 vote of its governing body, a local unit of government may exempt itself 
from the requirements of this act.   
 
(Note: The Library does not qualify to be exempt as it is not, by definition, a local 
unit of government.  Bloomfield Township is the local unit of government and 
does exempt itself from the requirements of this act. ) 

 
The amounts specified in the amended act have been increased 1.9% for the 2019 
calendar year and are updated in the options above.  The state of Michigan annual cost 
limitations announcement is attached for your information. 
  



 
Each December, the Library Board must decide which of the available options to 
implement for the next fiscal year.  The Library Board approved the hard cap option in 
2011, 2012, 2014, 2015 and 2016.  In 2013 and 2017 the Library Board approved the 
80/20 option.    
 
We now have an opportunity to choose the Hard Cap option for 2019 or choose the 
80/20 option but the decision must be affirmatively made by a majority vote of the 
Trustees at the December 18, 2018 Library Board meeting.  This decision will affect all 
full time and all 30 hour employees who accept health care benefits from the Library in 
2019. 
 
The attached cost analysis indicates the library/employee costs for both the hard cap 
and 80/20 options.  It would benefit our employees to elect the 80/20 option as 
employee costs to pay for their health care coverage would be less than the hard cap 
option. It would benefit the Library to elect the hard cap option as library costs to provide 
health care coverage to employees would be less than the 80/20 option. 
 
Another consideration each year is this - the Affordable Care Act states that “there is a 
penalty if the cost of single coverage for the least expensive plan that provides minimum 
value exceeds 9.5% of each employee’s W-2 income”.  Neither option, with an 
employee paying part of the health care premium, would exceed 9.5% of their annual 
income.   
 

It is recommended by Administration to adopt Option 2, known as the 80/20 Option, 
because it provides a lower health care cost for library employees.  The Personnel and 
Finance Committees support this recommendation.  Thank you for your consideration. 

If you agree, the following motion is needed: 

 

ACTION:   I move to adopt the 80/20 Option, as stated in PA 152, effective 
January 1, 2019. 



89 (Rev. 04-15) 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY RICK SNYDER 	 NICK A KHOURI 

GOVERNOR 	 LANSING STATE TREASURER 

September 17, 2018 

PUBLIC EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS TO MEDICAL BENEFIT PLANS 

ANNUAL COST LIMITATIONS - CALENDAR YEAR 2019 

For a medical benefit plan coverage year beginning on or after January 1, 2012, MCL 15.563, as amended 
by 2013 Public Act 270, sets a limit on the amount that a public employer may contribute to a medical 
benefit plan. 

For medical benefit plan coverage years beginning on or after January 1, 2013, MCL 15.563 provides 
that the dollar amounts that are multiplied by the number of employees with each coverage type be 
adjusted annually. Specifically, the dollar amounts shall be adjusted, by October 1 of each year, by the 
change in the medical care component of the United States consumer price index for the most recent 12
month period for which data are available. For calendar year 2018, the limit on the amount that a public 
employer may contribute to a medical benefit plan was set to the sum of the following: 

• 	 $ 6,560.52 times the number of employees and elected public officials with single-person 
coverage 

• 	 $13,720.07 times the number of employees and elected public officials with individual-and
spouse coverage or individual-plus-1-nonspouse-dependent coverage 

• $17,892.36 	 times the number of employees and elected public officials with family coverage. 

The limits for 2019 equal the 2018 limits increased by 1.9 percent. The 1.9 percent is the percentage 
change in the medical care component from the period September 2016-August 2017 to the period 
September 2017-August 2018. 

Thus, for medical benefit plan coverage years beginning on or after January 1, 2019, the limit on the 
amount that a public employer may contribute to a medical benefit plan equals the sum of the following: 

• 	 $ 6,685.17 times the number of employees and elected public officials with single-person 
coverage 

• 	 $13,980.75 times the number of employees and elected public officials with individual-and
spouse coverage or individual-plus-1-nonspouse-dependent coverage 

• $18,232.31 	 times the number of employees and elected public officials with family coverage. 

Nick A. 

September 17, 2018 


P.O. Box 30716 • Lansing, Ml 48909 
www.michigan.gov/treasury • (517) 373-3200 

www.michigan.gov/treasury
http:18,232.31
http:13,980.75
http:6,685.17
http:17,892.36
http:13,720.07
http:6,560.52


MICHIGAN PUBLIC ACT 152 - This act provides for health care premium employee contribution/sharing beginning 01/01/2012

Calendar Year 2019 annual cost limitations - published 9/2018, effective 1/1/2019

HARD CAP          1/1/2019-12/31/2019

Single Family

Current budgeted annual health care costs (medical only)* 9,394.66$             27,149.53$          

Hard cap amount = BTPL annual cost ($6,685.17) ($18,232.31)

Employee annual cost $2,709.49 $8,917.22

          Amount employee would pay per paycheck (24 pay periods) $112.90 $371.55

80/20 SPLIT

Current budgeted annual health care costs (medical only)* 9,394.66$             27,149.53$          

     80% = BTPL annual cost $7,515.73 $21,719.62

     20% = Employee annual cost $1,878.93 $5,429.91

          Amount employee would pay per paycheck (24 pay periods) $78.29 $226.25

* Budgeted heath care costs for FY 2019-2020 predict a 10% increase. 

2013-14  Library adopted the hard cap option.

2014-15  Library adopted the 80/20 option.

2015-16 Library adopted the hard cap option.

2016-17 Library adopted the hard cap option.

2017-18 Library adopted the hard cap option.

2018 Library adopted the 80/20 option.

2019 Library Director recommends 80/20 option.



          11c 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Trustees 
 
FROM: Personnel Committee – Sandy Edwards and Eli Greenbaum 
 
DATE: December 18, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Director’s Evaluation 
 
December is traditionally the time of year when the Personnel Committee asks for your input on 
the Library Director’s performance during the past fiscal year.   
 
The evaluation process will begin with a report from the Library Director to the Board 
summarizing her activities during 2018. The report, as well as the Director’s evaluation form, will 
be sent to you in early January. The form will be a Word document (it may be adjusted 
accordingly for your use) which you can print out or complete online. We ask that your 
completed evaluation form be returned to the Personnel Committee by January 15, 2019.  
 
The Personnel Committee will then use your input to complete the Library Director’s 
performance evaluation, share the results with you, and make a formal recommendation to the 
full Library Board regarding the Director’s performance and contract at the February 19, 2019 
Library Board meeting. 
 
It is anticipated that the Director’s report will provide information that will assist us in the 
evaluation process and guide the development of goals for the next fiscal year.   
 
We look forward to receiving your comments – any questions, please call or email. 
 
Timeline 
 
December 18, 2018  Director’s Evaluation Process confirmed 
 
January 5, 2019 Library Director returns her evaluation comments to the Personnel 

Committee 
 
January 6, 2019 Personnel Committee shares the Library Director’s evaluation 

comments and sends the Library Director evaluation form to each 
Trustee to complete 

 
January 15, 2019 Library Trustees return their completed Library Director evaluation 

forms to a member of the Personnel Committee 
 
February 19, 2019 The Personnel Committee will make a formal recommendation to 

the full Library Board regarding the Director’s performance and 
contract at the regular Library Board meeting 



The Bloomfield Township Public Library champions the power of words to spark discovery and imagination. 

 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Trustees  
 
FROM: Tera Moon 
 
DATE:  December 10, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Space Needs & Wayfinding Assessment Update 
 
 
A group of staff have been assigned “spaces ambassadors” and are tasked with helping to 
facilitate communication of this project to patrons and staff.  These folks have been working on 
writing a list of talking points and questions that might come up as we start to make changes for 
this project. 
 
We anticipate starting phase one of the Spaces project in April 2019.  Phase one is moving the 
Media collection to Adult and Youth Services and converting the space left into an area that 
patrons can use in a variety of ways including for collaboration and group studying.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The Bloomfield Township Public Library champions the power of words to spark discovery and imagination. 

 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Trustees  
 
FROM: Tera Moon 
 
DATE:  December 10, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Strategic Plan Update 
 
 
1. Marketing  

This group continues to meet and discuss ideas and tactics for marketing the Library and its 
services. 
 

2. Tours 
Another library tour is planned for the winter quarter.  The tours continue to attract small but 
enthusiastic groups.   
 

3. Staff Awareness 
The weekly Staff Huddles that this team recommended have been well-received by staff.  This 
team also inspired regular meetings of staff who are assigned to be Seniors-in-Charge.   
 

4. Programming  
This group hasn’t met in a while due to changes in personnel.  Once the new Adult Services 
Department Head settles in, we will take up our meetings again and work toward more 
coordinated and joint programming between departments.   

 
These investments will move us toward accomplishing our four strategic goals: 

 Expand awareness, use, and support of the Library and its services. 

 Further develop the highest level of customer service for Bloomfield Township residents. 

 Increase use of and customer satisfaction with the Library's services and collections. 

 Provide an attractive, easy-to-use, and flexible facility and grounds that meet a variety of users’ 
needs. 



January 2019 
MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY SUNDAY 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

 New Year's Eve 

Library Closed 

Will re-open Wednesday, 1/2 

2PM LEGO Club 11AM Cocoa and Coloring 

 

 

12PM English Language 
Conversation Hour 

 

1PM Robot Petting Zoo  

7 8 

 

9 10 11 12 13 

4:30PM  Mindful Mondays 
Yoga Series 

7PM Open Lab 

 

10AM Tinker Tales 

1PM Memoir Writers' Group 

 

12:15 PM Friends 

10AM Wee ALL Play 

6PM Introduction to Google 
Apps 

6:30PM My First Book Group 

 

10AM Mother Goose Club 

1PM Digital Download Help 

 

10AM Movers and Shakers 

12PM English Language 
Conversation Hour 

 

9:30AM – 3:30PM  

Friends of the Library 
Second Saturday  

11AM SENSEational Story 
Time 

 

 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

11AM Adult /Teen Sensory 
Storytime 

4:30PM  CS -First Animation 
(Grades 4-8) 

4:30PM  Mindful Mondays 
Yoga Series 

7PM Readers’ Club 

 

10AM Tinker Tales 

10AM Tuesday Book Club 

3:30PM Tutor.com Tuesday 

3:30 PM Teen Advisory Board 

7PM Michigan Author Series: 
Jan Bills, Late Bloomer 

7PM  Library Board  

 

Gale Courses Begin 

10AM Wee ALL Play 

1PM  Mystery Book Club 

4:30PM  CS -First Animation 
(Grades 4-8) 

6:30PM Paperbacks & Snacks 

 

 

10AM Mother Goose Club 

11AM  Development Committee 

6:30PM Art Lab 

7PM Open Lab 

 

10AM Movers and Shakers 

10AM Coffee &Conversation 

12PM English Language 
Conversation Hour 

7PMAn Evening of Music and 
Comedy with Eddy Kay 

11AM Tablet Tales 

 

 

 

21 

 

22 23 24 25 26 27 

10AM Family Story Time 

1PM 30 Minute Lunchtime 
Book Club 

4:30PM  Mindful Mondays 
Yoga Series 

4:30PM  CS -First Animation 
(Grades 4-8) 

 

10AM Tinker Tales 

1PM Memoir Writers' Group 

6:30PM 'In Vino Veritas' 
Nonfiction Book Club 

6:30PM Book Worms 

7PM Getting Your Financial 
House in Order 

10AM Wee ALL Play 

4:30PM  CS -First Animation 
(Grades 4-8) 

 

  

10AM Eleanor's Book Club 

10AM Mother Goose Club 

11AM  Building and Grounds 
Committee 

6PM Introduction To Scanning 
and Photo Editing 

6:30PM Book Chat 

 

6PM Introduction To Scanning 
and Photo Editing 

11AM  Sensory-Friendly 
Movies for Adults and Teens 

12PM English Language 
Conversation Hour 

4:30PM Bi-Lingual Stories 

7PM Chamber Music Concert 
Series 

  

28 29 30 31    

4:30PM  Mindful Mondays 
Yoga Series 

4:30PM  CS -First Animation 
(Grades 4-8) 

6PM Books in Bars at Rusty 
Bucket (Book Club) 

10AM Tinker Tales 

7PM Michigan Author Series: 
Amy Emberling and Frank 
Carollo, Zingerman’s 
Bakehouse 

 

10AM Wee ALL Play 

4:30PM  CS -First Animation 
(Grades 4-8) 

 

10AM Mother Goose Club 

6PM Introduction to 
SHUTTERFLY 

 

 

  

 


	1 Board Packet Cover Page
	1b  Contents December 2018
	3 AGENDA December 18, 2018
	3 Motion No 2a- NF
	4 Motion No 2b-NF
	5 Motion 5 consent agenda
	6 2018 11 20 Meeting-Minutes
	7a Cash Disbursements  December 2018
	7a Check Disbursements
	7b1 General Fund Board Copy
	7b2 Gift Fund Board Copy
	7b3 Asset Allocation
	7b5 Fines-Fees Report
	7b5 Room Rent Report
	7c1 Utilities Electricity
	7c1 Utilities Gas
	7c1 Utilities Water
	8b DIRECTORS REPORT December 2018
	8b1 Circ 5-Yr. - Nov 2018
	8b2 November 2018 Activity Report
	8c Finance Committee Mtg Minutes 2018 12 11
	8c Personnel Committee Minutes 2018 12 06
	11a PA 202 Establishing a Section 115 Trust 12 2018
	11a PA 202 Establishing a Section 115 Trust 12 2018

	11b 1 PA 152 cover memo 12 2018
	11b 2 PA 152  State of Michigan Ann'l Cost Limitations 11-1-18
	11b 3 PA 152 costs for 2019
	11c Director's Evaluation memo to Trustees 12 2018
	Unnumbered 2 Memo Space Needs & Wayfinding Assessment Update
	Unnumbered 3 Memo Strategic Plan Update
	Unnumbered 4_Calendar



